
July 13, 2015 
 

The East Lampeter Township Board of Supervisors met on Monday, July 13, 2015, at 7:30 p.m. 
at the East Lampeter Township Office: 2250 Old Philadelphia Pike, Lancaster, PA 17602. The 
meeting was called to order by Mr. John Blowers, Chairman and was followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance. In addition to Mr. Blowers, supervisors present were: Mr. David Buckwalter,  
Mr. Glenn Eberly, Mr. Corey Meyer and Mr. Ethan Demme. Also present was Mr. Ralph 
Hutchison, Township Manager.    
 
The following persons signed in as being present in the audience: 
 
Tom Smithgall, High Associates 
Mark Johnson, RGS, representing High-Bentley Ridge 
Stephen Kepchar, Morgan Stanley 
Howard Williard III, Morgan Stanley 
Brad Milburg, High Associates 
Jeanne Glck. East Lampeter Township 
Lynn Commero, representing Lancaster Newspapers 
Rob Visniski, RAV Associates 
Scott Bailey, Highview Leaman Rd, representing Highview Church of God 
Scott Smith, Highview Leaman Rd, representing Highview Church of God  
Dave Alexander, Highview Leaman Rd, representing Highview Church of God 
Jeff Cutler, 67 Cambridge Village, Tax Collector 
David Keens, 63 Lafayette Way, representing Lafayette Fire Company 
Thomas Colvin, 162 Buckwalter Road, Lancaster 
Scott Hershey, 152 South Eastland Drive, representing Lafayette Fire Company 
 
Minutes of the June 15, 2015 Regular Meeting 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if there were any additions or corrections regarding the minutes of the 
June 15, 2015 regular meeting as prepared. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Demme to approve the minutes as presented.  Mr. Eberly seconded 
the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Bills: 
 
Chairman Blowers indicated that bills to be paid from various funds in the amount of $568,947.32 
were presented for payment. Mr. Blowers discussed some of the larger items included in that 
amount was a payment in the amount of $29,802.72 to Alamo Sales Corp/Tiger for a new boom 
mower, a payment in the amount of $35,000.00 to Lafayette Fire Company for reimbursement of 
portable radios purchased for the new County system, a payment in the amount of $34,271.74 to 
Ronks Fire Company for reimbursement of portable radios purchased for the new County 
system, a payment in the amount of $35,000.00 to Witmer Fire Company for reimbursement of 
portable radios purchased for the new County system, a payment in the amount of $8,000.00 to 
Upper Leacock Township for 2015 contribution to Leola Pool operating costs, a payment in the 
amount of $20,656.43 to URS Corp. for Route 30 Streetscape plan (final payment) and a 
payment in the amount of $55,948.08 to Highway Materials for 2015 in place paving project. 
 



A motion was made by Mr. Meyer and seconded by Mr. Buckwalter to approve the payment of the 
bills as listed in the amount of $568,947.32.  The motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Old Business: 
 

a. Fire Apparatus Replacement Funding Request – Lafayette Fire Co. Squad Vehicle 
 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Dave Keens was 
present. 
 
Mr. Dave Keens, the deputy chief of Lafayette Fire Company, made a presentation in regards to 
the purchase of a new 2016 Squad vehicle.  He stated that Lafayette Fire Company is proposing 
to replace their 1990 Squad vehicle with a new 2016 Squad vehicle.  He stated the fire company 
got several bids for the new vehicle.  He stated that the final cost will be $152,391.  He stated 
that the vendor stated they will meet the fire company terms for financing requirements so there 
will be no need to pull Township funds early and no need for a bridge loan.  He stated the final 
payment is due when the vehicle is picked up in January of 2016.  He reviewed three agreements 
regarding the purchase of the new squad.  He stated that the first agreement states that the fire 
company will take full responsibility for operation and maintenance costs of the 1990 Squad 
including fuel and insurance.  He stated the second agreement states the fire company will 
prorate a portion of the sale of the new squad back to the Township if or when the new squad 
would be sold.  He stated the third agreement states that the fire company is to own the squad 
vehicle with a contribution from the VFRA.  He reviewed the payment plan for the purchase of 
the new squad vehicle. 
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the Lafayette Fire Company 2016 Squad purchase as 
presented with agreements regarding the Township funding of $91,435(60%) and the Fire 
Company paying all insurance and maintenance costs of the1990 Squad.  Mr. Eberly seconded 
the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Bentley Ridge North Development Plan #15-18: 2194 Old Philadelphia Pike 
 

Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Tom Smithgall was 
present. 
 
Mr. Smithgall, from High Associates, introduced Mr. Mark Johnson from RGS and Mr. Brad 
Millburg from High Associates.  Mr. Smithgall stated that the plan was presented previously and 
that they received a recommendation from the Planning Commission in early June. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that the plan is basically the same as the sketch plan.  He stated it is a 5 acre 
lot along the south side of Old Philadelphia Pike and the west side of Buckwalter Road and is 
zoned R-3.  He stated they are proposing an apartment complex with 42 total dwelling units 
consisting of 2 apartment buildings one with 18 units and one with 20 units and one row of 
townhouses consisting of 4 units.  He stated they are also proposing 2 separate garage building 
with 5 garages each. He reviewed the David Miller Associates letter dated July 13, 2015.  He 
explained the waivers/modifications/deferrals that they are requesting including: waiver of 
preliminary plan, modification of plan scale, modification of the clear sight triangle, deferral of 



perimeter, curbing and sidewalk improvements and modification of the requirement that all 
sidewalks conform to specifications for Class A Concrete in order to allow for a bituminous 
surface walking trail.  He stated that they are seeking conditional approval of the plan, waivers 
and deferrals, and financial security.  He stated that they are also seeking fee in lieu of parkland 
in the amount of $10,000. 
 
Mr. Blowers discussed Route 340 sidewalk improvement deferrals and stated that they would 
like to see the sidewalks done and a timeline for doing those improvements.  Mr. Johnson stated 
that he suggested a 5 year limitation on financial security. Mr. Buckwalter asked if the Township 
has required a bond for frontage improvements.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he is not aware of any 
bonds used to secure future improvements but the Township does enter into deferral agreements 
and recording the agreements for improvements.   
 
Mr. Johnson stated that the amount of fee in lieu of parkland was what they paid for the last 50 
units built.  Mr. Meyer asked how the fee in lieu of parkland is determined.  Mr. Hutchison 
replied that the ordinance calls for .027 acres per new dwelling unit.  He calculated that 42 units 
multiplied by .027 equals 1.1 acres. He stated the fee in lieu of parkland is to be the value of the 
pre-developed land of 1.1 acres.  Mr. Johnson stated that they are providing trails on the property 
that will connect with existing trails.  Mr. Demme asked if they knew how much greenspace and 
how many homes they currently have.  Mr. Millburg stated that they have 471 existing units and 
the proposed 42 units.  He stated he had no calculation on the acreage of open space.  
Mr. Demme asked if the trails are open to the public.  Mr. Millburg responded they don’t have it 
assigned that way but he thinks the public is using the walking trails.  He also stated that he 
thinks there’s about 10 acres of open space between the properties.  Mr. Blowers stated that the 
goal of the ordinance is to ensure that when development occurs in the community that the 
burden placed upon the existing community for open space and parkland is not compromised but 
enhanced.  He stated that the applicant has shown that they do provide significant open space for 
their residents.  Mr. Meyer recommended an amount of $20,000 for the fee in lieu of parkland. 
 
Mr. Meyer made a motion to approve the Bentley Ridge North Development Plan #15-18 at 
2194 Old Philadelphia Pike conditioned upon the review comments of the Planning Commission 
and the David Miller and changing the fee in lieu of parkland amount to$20,000 and removing 
item #6 the requirement for security and adding the applicant signing a deferral agreement for 
items #4, #5, and #6.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice 
vote. 
 

b. Request for Waiver of Stormwater Management Ordinance – Highview Church of God: 
2470 Leaman Road 

 
Chairman Blowers asked if anyone was present for this agenda item.  Mr. Rob Visniski was 
present.  
 
Mr. Rob Visniski, RAV Associates, stated that he is representing Highview Church of God.  He 
stated that the project is to build a 25 ft. by 25 ft. GAGA pit.  He stated that the applicant was 
told that since the project is not a residential use it would require a full stormwater plan.  He 
stated that it is a small project of 625 square feet.  He stated that the church is concerned that the 
cost to do a full stormwater plan is more than the cost of the construction of the GAGA pit.  He 
stated that they are not requesting a waiver of the Stormwater Management Ordinance.  He stated 
that the church would like to install a 4 ft. stone perimeter that is 1 ft. deep for infiltration.  He 



stated that the applicant will meet the volume control requirements of section 302.A and the rate 
control requirements of section 303.A.  He stated that the applicant is asking to waive the plan 
processing requirements.  The Board discussed the Stormwater Management Ordinance 
requirements.  Mr. Hutchison suggested that the project be shared with the Township Engineer.  
Mr. Visniski stated that he spoke with the Township Engineer and stated that he agrees with the 
concept but he did not do a formal review.  Mr. Buckwalter asked about consequences approving 
the applicants request and expressed concern about an EPA and waiving a portion of the 
ordinance.  Mr. Hutchison stated that he recommends having the Township Engineer review and 
comment for backup for the decision.  Mr. Demme asked if they waive the process does that 
wave the set fees. Mr. Hutchison stated yes it does.  Mr. Visniski stated that the applicant would 
agree to pay for the engineer’s time to review the plan.   
 
Mr. Demme made a motion to waive the processing and submission requirements of the 
Stormwater Management Ordinance for Highview Church of God at 2470 Leaman Road 
conditioned upon meeting the intent of the plan upon review of the Township Engineer that 
volume, rate and quality controls are being met and the cost of the Township Engineer paid by 
the applicant.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 
Other Business:  
 

a. Review of Pension Plans Investment Performance – Morgan Stanley 
 
Mr. Stephen Kepchar, senior Vice President of Morgan Stanley, introduced himself and Mr. 
Howard Williard.  Mr. Williard reviewed the performance of the pension plan.  Mr. Kepchar 
reviewed the projections of the market.  Mr. Meyer asked about the alternate investments and if 
they will get up to the 15% range. Mr. Kepchar stated that he thinks eventually it will be reached.  
Mr. Meyer asked how they are compensated on the plan.  Mr. Kepchar stated it is all 1% of 
assets under management.  Mr. Blowers asked where the Township stands on the funding level.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that as of 1/1/13 the Township was 90% funded. 
 

b. Authorization to Submit Smart Growth Transportation Funding Application 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that back in May the Township asked the Board for authorization to submit 
Notices of Intent to apply to the Smart Growth Transportation program that the County has in 
using some the funding that they get through the Transportation Improvement Program to 
support Smart Growth Transportation projects.  He stated the Board authorized the Township to 
submit two applications but the Township only submitted one.  He stated both were related to the 
Route 30 Streetscape Plan. He stated one application was for the idea of restriping the lanes 
along the corridor and the other was to reconstruct a block of Rockvale Road between Hartman 
Bridge Road and Bowman Road and include a bike path.  He stated both notices were accepted 
to the program and the County sent us applications to complete.  He stated that staff concluded 
that we were not prepared enough to submit an application for the Rockvale Road project so that 
project will probably be submitted for next year.  He stated that the application for the restriping 
is not complete but due to the Board only having one meeting this month the Township is asking 
for the authorization to submit the application when it is complete. 
 
Mr. Meyer asked if the Township had more time would they be able to submit the application for 
the Rockvale Road project.  Mr. Hutchison stated that looking at all the items needed to do the 
Rockvale Road project there is more work involved than previously thought. 



 
Mr. Buckwalter made a motion to authorize the submission of the Smart Growth Transportation 
Funding Application for the Route 30 restriping of lanes.  Mr. Eberly seconded the motion and it 
was passed by unanimous voice vote. 
 

c. Resolution re:  PADOT Winter Traffic Services Agreement 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated that this continues the agreement with PADOT to provide winter traffic 
services to Greenfield Road, Mount Sidney Road, North Ronks Road and Pitney Road.  He 
stated that the agreement is for 5 years. 
 
Mr. Eberly made a motion to adopt the Resolution #2015-10 for PADOT Winter Traffic Services 
Agreement.  Mr. Meyer seconded the motion and it was passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Resolution #2015-10 
 

d. LIMC Report 
 
Mr. Blowers reported on the Lancaster Inter-Municipal Committee.  He stated that the committee 
lost three members in the past year.  He stated that the remaining eight municipalities re-
evaluated the funding mechanisms of the updating the existing comprehensive plan.  He stated 
they received a report from ELA stating that the plan doesn’t need any updating but the 
committee should carry out their action items and encourage the three municipalities to return to 
the committee. He stated that the committee decreased the commitment to $1500.00 a year.  He 
stated that there is no staff currently that everything is being handled by volunteering members.  
He stated that the committee is continuing to fund the Smart Growth Transportation project to 
look at the Greater Lancaster Heritage Pathway (Goat Path).  He stated that they are looking at 
having elected members come on meetings on a quarterly basis. 
 

e. MS4 (Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System) Report 
 
Mr. Hutchison stated this will become a monthly agenda item which will help the Township with 
their public education requirements which are part of the MS4 permit.  He explained that MS4 
means Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System.  He stated that the permit is issued from DEP at 
the state level under requirements of the Federal Government through the Environmental 
Protection Agency.  He explained that the permit is under the NPDES program which stands for 
the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System.  He stated that the MS4 permit requires 
the Township to deal with water quality issues.  He stated that the Township has been meeting 
the requirements since 2003.  He listed the 6 control measures the Township has to meet as 
follows: 1) Public education/outreach 2) Public involvement/participation 3) Illicit Discharge 
Detection & Elimination 4) Construction Site Run-off Controls 5) Post Construction Stormwater 
Controls 6) Pollution Prevention & Good Housekeeping.  He stated that the Township files 
annual reports to DEP to show that we are meeting the required controls.  He commented that 
Kara Kalupson, the Township’s Stormwater Coordinator, prepared a report for the Board 
showing items that she has worked on since starting with the Township.  He stated that in the 
new permit there is a requirement to prepare a Chesapeake Bay Pollution Reduction Plan 
(CBPRP).  He stated that they are in the process of preparing the plan and plan to approach DEP 
to ask if the plan could be on a regional basis which would reduce the cost of preparing the plan 
and any projects or programs would have broader benefit in the region.  He stated that Kara, 
Tara, Charlie and he meet on a biweekly basis to discuss MS4 requirements.   



 
He stated that there was a kick off meeting with the Lancaster Farmland Trust to contact every 
farm in the Township and collect information regarding each farm’s efforts in best management 
practices (BMP’s) and preform land surveys and modeling of the Townships system.  He stated 
that this project will be funded with a $50,000 National Fish & Wildlife Fund (NFWF) grant and 
a Township contribution of $5,000 previously approved by the Board. 
 
He stated that the City of Lancaster is applying for a Growing Greener Grant for a project to 
study an unnamed tributary to the Conestoga River which runs south of and generally parallel to 
Lincoln Highway from a point near Longfellow Drive west under Tennyson Drive, Reese 
Avenue and Lampeter Road and goes through portions of East Lampeter, West Lampeter and the 
City.  He stated that the Township has submitted a letter of support for their application for this 
project.  He stated that East Lampeter Township’s share of the match to this grant will be 
provided through the above NFWF grant project. 
 
He stated that as part of MCM requirements is to identify all the locations where BMP’s have 
been installed since 2003 and the Township identified about 110 locations/developments where 
BMP’s have been installed.  He stated that the Township now needs to inspect the condition of 
them to determine if any maintenance is required and to place them in our GIS system.  He stated 
that they will need inspected on a regular basis and most of them are on private property.  He 
stated that the Township would like to set up an internship opportunity with Millersville 
University to develop a position for a “Stormwater Technician” to complete inspections and 
gather information related to all of the BMP’s that have been installed in the Township since 
2003.  He stated that the Township would compensate them and the student would receive 
education credits.  He stated that the cost to the Township would be much less than having staff 
or our consultant do the inspections.   
 
Mr. Blowers asked if the Township had the software presentation that the LIMC received.  
Mr. Hutchison stated that the Township had received the presentation.  He stated that the 
Township is looking into that program but is also looking to see if our MYGOV system has 
something similar so that the Township only has to maintain one GIS system.  He stated that if 
they don’t, the Township will probably move forward with the software.   
 
Public Comment: 
 
.Mr. Blowers stated that Lancaster General Hospital has reached out to the Board about the 
“Young Lungs at Play” initiative.  Mr. Meyer stated that they are asking municipalities to pass 
ordinances to not allow smoking in public places. Mr. Demme asked if the program would have 
any MS4 benefit.  He expressed concern about cigarette butts going into the storm sewer system.  
Mr. Blowers stated that the Board should take some time to look over the information and 
discuss at the August meeting.  Mr. Blowers stated that the Board had previous concerns about 
enforcing such an ordinance.  Mr. Buckwalter & Mr. Eberly stated they didn’t feel a need for 
such an ordinance and also expressed concern on how to enforce it.  Mr. Demme suggested 
having the Park Board make a recommendation for the next Board meeting in August. 
 
Mr. Blowers stated that the Board had asked Staff to prepare an alternative to the Property 
Maintenance Code Ordinance that was previously presented and not adopted.  He stated the 
Board needs to review and give staff some direction in the next 30 days. 
 



Mr. Blowers stated that Mr. Demme asked the Board to consider making a more formal 
resolution with guidelines in how the Board handles requests for liquor license applications and 
transfers.  He stated the Board should review and give staff direction in the next 30 to 60 days. 
 
Mr. Dan Andrews, president of the Conestoga Valley Little League, expressed his appreciation 
to the Board for their help financially and non-financially.  He stated that the staff and facilities 
in the Township are fantastic. He asked that the Board continue their support of the league.   
Mr. Demme asked Mr. Andrews his opinion on the “Young Lungs at Play” initiative. 
Mr. Andrews stated ideally it is a good idea to keep smoking away from the kids and parks.  He 
also expressed his appreciation to the Board for supporting the Leola Pool. 
 
Mr. Jeffrey Cutler, Township Tax Collector, spoke to the Board as follows: 
“In response to the action you took against me, I decided to take one against the entire Board. 
You have all been served.  This is a motion I filed against everyone here plus both lawyers 
involved and this basically says that you violated the Sunshine Law and I’ve made complaints to 
the District Attorney’s office and the Attorney General’s office, so, that’s where we stand since 
you decided to really (incomplete word)…make my life miserable or tried to, we will all go 
down together.” 
 
Mr. Blowers thanked Mr. Cutler for his presence. 
 
Adjournment: 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Eberly and seconded by Mr. Meyer to adjourn the meeting. The 
motion was passed by unanimous voice vote. The next regularly scheduled meeting is to be 
held on Monday, August 3, 2015 beginning at 7:30 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Ralph Hutchison 






























































